

**BYLAWS
OF
BENT TREE OF ROGERS COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC.**
an Arkansas Nonprofit Corporation
(as adopted May 7, 2001)

**ARTICLE I.
OFFICES**

1.1 Registered Office and Agent. The registered office and registered agent of the Bent Tree of Rogers Community Association, Inc. (the "Association") shall be as designated with the Office of the Secretary of the State of Arkansas, as it may be changed from time to time.

1.2 Other Offices. The Association may also have offices at such other places both within and without the State of Arkansas as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or as the business of the Association may require.

**ARTICLE II.
MEMBERS**

2.1 Members. Each and every Resident or Owner, who is in good standing with the Association, who has filed a proper statement of residency with the Association, who has complied with all directives and requirements of the Association, and who has otherwise satisfied all of the requirements set forth in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions, Easements, Charges and Liens dated December 29, 2000 and filed of record on January 8, 2001 in the office of the Circuit Clerk and Ex-Officio Recorder of Benton County, Arkansas, at Document No. 01-001718, as established by the Declarant, Louis R. Winski Investments, Inc., for the Bent Tree of Rogers Addition in Benton County, Arkansas (the "Addition"), as per Plat of said Addition on file in the Office of the Circuit Clerk and Recorder of Benton county, Arkansas, or by any amendment or supplementary declaration thereto filed in accordance with the provisions thereof (the "Declaration"), shall automatically be a Member of the Association, provided that any person or entity who holds an interest merely as security for the performance of any obligation shall not be a Member. Membership shall consist of two classes, the Class A Members and the Class B. Members. Membership of an Owner in the Association shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from the interest of such Owner in and to any portion of a Lot. Ownership of any Lot shall be the sole qualification for being a Member; however, a Member's privileges to use the Common Properties may be regulated or suspended as provided in the Declaration, these Bylaws, or the rules and regulations promulgated by the Board. Each and every Owner of each and every Lot within the Addition shall automatically be, and must at all times remain, a Member of the Association in good standing. Each and every Resident (who is not otherwise an Owner) may, but is not required to, be a non-voting Member of the Association.

2.2 Voting Rights. The voting rights of the Members of the Association shall be as set forth in Article III of the Declaration.

2.3 Transfers of Membership Interests. The membership of an Owner may not be severed from or in any way transferred, pledged, mortgaged or alienated except upon the sale, assignment or transfer of such Owner's interest in all or any part of such Owner's Lot and then only to the purchaser, assignee or transferee as the new Owner of the Lot in question. Each Owner shall notify the Association of any transfer or assignment of the fee title to his/her/its Lot. Such transfer shall automatically operate to transfer the membership to the new Owner thereof.

ARTICLE III. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

3.1 Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the Members shall be held on the second Tuesday in the month of January in each year at such time and place as the Board of Directors may determine, for the purpose of electing Directors and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting; provided, however, that the Board of Directors may establish a different day in the month of January and time for the annual meeting. If the second Tuesday in the month of January shall be a legal holiday in the State of Arkansas and if the Board of Directors has not established a different day for the annual meeting, then the annual meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If the election of Directors shall not be held on the day designated herein for any annual meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the Members as soon thereafter as conveniently may be.

3.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members may be called by the President, a Member of the Board of Directors, or the Members holding at least five percent (5%) of the voting power of the Association upon their signing, dating and delivering to any officer of the Association one (1) or more written demands for such meeting describing the purpose or purposes for which it is to be held. The close of business on the 30th day before delivery of the demand or demands for a special meeting to any officer of the Association is the record date for the purposes of determining whether the five percent (5%) requirement herein has been met. In the event that notice of a special meeting demanded by the Members holding five percent (5%) of the voting power of the Association is not given within 30 days after the date the written demand or demands are delivered to the officer of the Association, any Member signing the demand or demands may set the time and place of the meeting and give the notice pursuant to the notice provisions set forth in these Bylaws.

3.3 Place of Meeting. The Board of Directors may designate any place, either within or without the State of Arkansas as the place of meeting for any annual meeting or for any special meeting called by the Board of Directors. If no designation is made or if a special meeting be otherwise called, the place of meeting shall be the registered office of the Association in the State of Arkansas; but if all the Members shall meet at

any time and place, either within or without the State of Arkansas, and consent to the holding of a meeting, such meeting shall be valid without call or notice, and at such meeting any corporate action may be taken.

3.4 Notice of Meetings. Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of any meeting of Members shall be delivered, either personally, by facsimile transmission or by mail, to each Member entitled to vote at such meeting, not less than ten (10) (or if notice is mailed by other than first class or registered mail, thirty (30)) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of such meeting, by or at the direction of the President or the Secretary, or the officers or persons calling the meeting. In case of a special meeting or when required by statute or by these Bylaws, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice. If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the Member at his address as it appears on the records of the Association, with postage thereon prepaid. If sent by facsimile, the notice of the meeting shall be deemed delivered upon successful transmission of such facsimile. Any Member may waive notice of any meeting. Such waiver must be in writing, signed by the Member entitled to the notice, and delivered to the Association for inclusion in the minutes or filing with the Association's records. The attendance of a Member at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Member attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully convened or called. Such objection must be made at the beginning of any such meeting.

3.5 Record Dates. The Board of Directors may establish a record date for determining the Members entitled to notice of a meeting and entitled to vote or exercise any other lawful rights at the meeting. If the Board of Directors does not establish a record date (a) Members at the close of business on the business day preceding the date on which notice is given are entitled to notice of the meeting and (b) Members on the date of the meeting who are otherwise eligible to vote shall be entitled to vote at the meeting. A record date established by the Board of Director may not be more than seventy (70) days before the date of the meeting. A determination of Members entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of the Members shall be effective for any adjournment of the meeting unless the Board fixes a new record date. The Board must fix a new record date if the meeting is adjourned to a date more than seventy (70) days after the original record date for the meeting.

3.6 Informal Action by Members. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of the Members, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of Members, may be taken without a meeting if one (1) or more consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by those Members representing at least eighty percent (80%) of the voting power of the Association, and delivered to the Association for inclusion in the minutes or for filing with the Association's records. The record date for determining Members entitled to take action without a meeting is the date the first Member signs the consent referred to herein. The Association shall provide written notice of Member approval pursuant to this Section, to all Members who have not

signed the written consent referred to herein. If written notice is required, Member approval pursuant to this Section shall be effective ten (10) days after such written notice is given.

3.7 Quorum. The Members holding one-half of the total eligible votes which may be cast at any meeting shall constitute a quorum at such meeting. If a quorum is not present at any meeting of Members, a majority of the Members present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

3.8 Majority Vote. When a quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of the Members holding a majority of all votes held by the Members, present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting, shall decide all matters brought before the meeting, unless the matter is one which, by express provision of law or the Declaration or the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such matter.

3.9 Proxies. At any meeting of Members, a Member entitled to vote may vote by proxy executed in writing by the Member or by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact. No proxy shall be valid after eleven months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy.

ARTICLE IV. DIRECTORS

4.1 General Powers. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by its Board of Directors. The Directors need not be Members of the Association. All the corporate powers, except as otherwise provided by law or the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Association, or as limited by the Declaration, shall be vested in and exercised by the Board of Directors.

4.2 Number, Election, Tenure and Qualifications. The number, election, tenure and qualifications of the Directors of the Association shall be as specified in Article IV of the Declaration. Directors shall be elected by plurality of the votes cast by the Members of the Association entitled to vote in the election of Directors present, in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the Members at which a quorum is present. Cumulative voting shall not be permitted. Each Director shall hold office until his successor shall have been elected and qualified. Any Director may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the Board of Directors of the Association. The resignation shall be effective when the notice is effective, unless said notice specifies a later effective date.

4.3 Regular Meetings. A regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held without other notice than this bylaw, immediately after, and at the same place as, the annual meeting of Members. The Board of Directors may provide by resolution the time and place, either within or without the State of Arkansas, for the holding of additional regular meetings of the Board without other notice than such resolution.

4.4 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or a majority of the Board of Directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board may fix any place, either within or without the State of Arkansas, as the place for holding any special meeting of the Board called by them.

4.5 Notice. Notice of any special meeting of the Board of Directors shall state the date, time and place of said meeting, and shall be given at least two (2) days before such meeting by written notice delivered personally or sent by mail or facsimile to each Director at the address of such Director as shown by the records of the Association. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail in a sealed envelope so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid. If notice is given by facsimile, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered upon successful transmission of the facsimile. A copy of any notice sent to the Board of Directors by facsimile must also be sent to each Director on the same business day by mail or by personal delivery. Any Director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a Director at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully convened or called. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting, unless specifically required by law or by these Bylaws. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in such meetings by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by reason of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other and participation in a meeting in such manner shall constitute presence in person at such meeting except where a Director so participates in the meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

4.6 Quorum. A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board; but if less than a majority of the Directors are present at any meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

4.7 Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the Directors present in person at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by law or by these Bylaws.

4.8 Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors shall be filled by the Board of Directors even if the remaining Directors constitute less than a quorum; provided, however, that in the event of a vacancy a Director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office. Any Directorship to be filled by reason of any increase in the number of Directors shall be filled by election at an annual meeting or at a special meeting of the Members called for that purpose. In the event of a resignation with a notice specifying a later effective date, the Board may

fill the pending vacancy prior to the effective date so long as it specifies that the successor shall not take office until the effective date.

4.9 Compensation. Directors as such shall not receive any stated salaries for their services, but, by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed sum and expenses of attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting of the Board; but nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any Director from serving the Association in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor.

4.10 Informal Action by Directors. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of Directors, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of Directors, may be taken without a meeting if the action is taken by all Members of the Board and evidenced by a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, signed by all of the Directors. The written consent shall be filed with and included in the minutes filed with the corporate records of the Association. Any action so taken shall be effective when the last Director has signed such a consent, unless a different effective date is specified.

ARTICLE V. OFFICERS

5.1 Officers. The officers of the Association shall be a President, one or more Vice Presidents (the number thereof to be determined by the Board of Directors), a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other officers as may be elected in accordance with the provisions of this Article. The Board of Directors may elect or appoint such other officers, including one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary.

5.2 Election and Term of Office. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors. If the election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as convenient. New offices may be created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified.

5.3 Removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors at any time, with or without cause, whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the officer so removed. Election or appointment of an officer shall not, of itself, create any contract rights.

5.4 Resignation. Any officer may resign at any time by delivering a written notice of resignation to the Association. The resignation is effective when the notice is

effective, unless the notice specifies a future effective date. If a written resignation specifies a future effective date, and the Association accepts the future effective date, the Board of Directors may fill the pending vacancy before the effective date, so long as the Board provides that the successor shall not take office until the effective date.

5.5 Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

5.6 President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the Association and shall in general supervise, manage and control all of the business and affairs of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Members and, if the Chairman of the Board is absent, of the Board of Directors. He may sign, with or without the Secretary or any other proper officer of the Association authorized by the Board of Directors, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws or by statute to some other officer or agent of the Association. Additionally, he shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Board of Directors are carried into effect. In general, he shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

5.7 Vice President. In the absence of the President or in the event of his inability or refusal to act, the Vice President (or in the event there be more than one Vice President, the Vice Presidents in the order of their election) shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. Any Vice President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

5.8 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Association; receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the Association from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Association in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected by the Board of Directors. He shall keep full and accurate records and accounts of all receipts and disbursements of the Association; disburse funds of the Association as ordered by the Board of Directors, and prepare financial statements as directed by the Board of Directors. In general, he shall perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors. If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine.

5.9 Secretary. The Secretary shall attend and keep the minutes of the meetings of the Members and of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided

for that purpose, record all votes/actions of such meetings, see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law, be custodian of the Corporate records and of the seal of the Association and see that the seal of the Association is affixed to all documents as necessary, the execution of which on behalf of the Association under its seal is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws; keep a register of the post office address of each Member which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such Member; and in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI. COMMITTEES

6.1 Residential Architectural Review Committee. The Association shall have a Residential Architectural Review Committee (the "RARC", to be established and governed in accordance with the terms of Article VIII, Architectural Review, of the Declaration, these Bylaws, as applicable, and by the Board of Directors to the extent provided in the Declaration. The members of the RARC shall be natural persons selected and appointed in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration. The RARC shall be composed of at least three (3) individuals initially selected and appointed by the Declarant, each generally familiar with residential and community development and design matters and knowledgeable about the Declarant's concern for a consistent first class approach to and construction of Improvements within the Addition. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to preclude any member of the RARC from serving the Association in any other capacity. In the event of the death, incapacity, removal or resignation of any member of the RARC, the Declarant, during the Development Period, shall have full authority to designate and appoint a successor, and shall have full authority to remove any member of the RARC at any time, with or without cause. From and after the expiration of the Development Period, the RARC members shall be selected, appointed, and replaced, in the event of death, incapacity, removal or resignation, by the Board of Directors, and the Board shall have authority to remove any RARC member from time to time, with or without cause.

6.2 Other Committees. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors, may create one or more committees (in addition to the RARC) as determined to be necessary. Except as otherwise provided in such resolution, members of such committee or committees shall be Members of the Association, and the President of the Association shall appoint the members thereof subject to approval by the Board of Directors. Members of a committee as such shall not receive any stated salaries for their services, but, by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed sum and expenses of attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at each meeting thereof; but nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any committee member from serving the Association in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor.

6.3 Term of Office. Each member of a committee shall continue as such until the next annual meeting of the Members of the Association or until the successor to such member is appointed unless the committee shall be sooner terminated, or unless such member be removed from such committee, or unless such member shall cease to qualify as a member thereof.

6.4 Chair. One member of each committee shall be appointed as the Chair of such committee by the President, subject to approval by the Board of Directors.

6.5 Vacancies. Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by appointments made in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments.

6.6 Quorum. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating a committee, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a quorum and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.

6.7 Rules. Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not inconsistent with these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, the Declaration, or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII. ASSESSMENTS

7.1 Assessments. Generally each Owner of any Lot or part of any property covered by the Declaration, or any supplementary declaration thereto filed in accordance with the provisions thereof, except the Association itself, shall pay to the Association all Assessments to be established by and in accordance with the Declaration or any supplementary declaration thereto. The Board of Directors shall follow the provisions of the Declaration, or any supplementary declaration thereto, in fixing the Assessments and in the determination of how and when said Assessments shall be paid; however, if no such provisions are set forth in the Declaration, then the Board of the Directors shall be responsible for establishing these matters.

7.2 Purpose of Assessments. The Assessments levied by the Association shall be used for the purposes set forth in the Declaration, or any supplementary declaration thereto. Subject to the provision of the Declaration, the Assessments shall be used for the purpose of promoting the comfort, health, recreation, safety, convenience, welfare and quality of the Members of the Association, and for carrying out the purposes of the Association as stated in its Articles of Incorporation.

7.3 Increase in Rate of Assessments. Any increase in the rate of the Assessments must be made in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration. In connection therewith, the Board of Directors may, during the term of the Declaration, increase the regular Annual Assessments for each Residential Lot without a vote of a

Members from Fiscal Year to Fiscal Year, however, such adjustment shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the previous Fiscal Year's regular Annual Assessment against the Residential Lots in question. Increases beyond the maximum amount may only be made in accordance with the terms of the Declaration.

7.4 Due Date of Assessments. The Assessments for any year shall become due and payable at such times as shall be specified in the Declaration; however, if no provision is made therein, then the due date and any delinquent date shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

7.5 Owner's Personal Obligation for Payment of Assessments. Except as otherwise provided by the Declaration, the following shall be applicable to all Assessments:

(a) The Assessments provided for herein shall be the continuing personal obligation of the Owner, Member and Resident of the Lot or property covered by such Assessment;

(b) No Owner may exempt himself, herself or itself from any liability for such Assessment; and

(c) In the event of a default in the payment of any such Assessment, the Owner of the Lot or property shall be obligated to pay interest at the Maximum Lawful Rate on the amount of the Assessment from the due date thereof, together with all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees.

7.6 Assessment Lien and Foreclosure. The establishment of any liens and Charges on the Lots or other property covered by the Declaration and the Assessments provided herein and therein, shall be governed by and in accordance with the terms of the Declaration.

7.7 Properties Exempt. All Exempt Property as defined in the Declaration, shall be exempted from the Assessments or Charges created herein and in the Declaration.

ARTICLE VIII. MAINTENANCE

8.1 Duty of Maintenance. Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration, all Owners, Members and Residents of any part of any Lot or any other part of the property covered by the Declaration, shall jointly and severally have the duty and responsibility at their sole cost and expense, to keep their Lot or that part of such property so owned or occupied, including buildings, Improvements and grounds in connection therewith, in a well-maintained, safe, clean and attractive condition at all times. Such maintenance includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- (a) Prompt removal of all litter, trash, refuse and wastes;
- (b) Lawn mowing;

- (c) Tree and shrub pruning;
- (d) Watering;
- (e) Complying with all government health and police requirements; and
- (f) Such other maintenance as determined to be appropriate by the Board of Directors.

8.2 Enforcement. Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration, if, in the opinion of the Association, any such Owner, Member or Resident has failed in any of the foregoing duties or responsibilities, then the Association may give such person written notice of such failure and such person must within five (5) days after receiving such notice, perform the care and maintenance required. Should any such person fail to fulfill this duty and responsibility within such period, then the Association through its authorized agent or agents shall have the right and power to enter onto the premises and perform such care and maintenance without any liability for damages for wrongful entry, trespass or otherwise to any person. The Owners, Members and Residents of any part of the Lot on which such work is performed shall jointly and severally be liable for the cost of such work and shall promptly reimburse the Association for such cost. If such Owner, Member or Resident shall fail to reimburse the Association, then said indebtedness shall constitute an Individual Assessment and shall constitute a lien against the Lot on which said work was performed. Such lien shall have the same attributes as the lien for Assessments set forth in the Declaration, and the Association shall have identical powers and rights in all respects, including but not limited to the right of foreclosure.

ARTICLE IX. INDEMNIFICATION

9.1 General. For purposes of these Bylaws and this Article, the term "Association" shall have the same meaning as the term "Corporation" as defined in the Arkansas Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1993 (the "Act"). Additionally, the terms "Director", "Expenses", "Liability", "Official Capacity", "Party" and "Proceeding", as well as any other applicable terms, shall have the same definitions as assigned to them pursuant to the Act. It is the goal of this article, as well as these Bylaws, to be in compliance with the Act at all times.

9.2 Standard for Indemnification. Except as otherwise provided herein or in the Act, the Association may indemnify a person made a party to a proceeding because the person is or was a Director of the Association against liability incurred in said proceeding only if it is determined in accordance with Section 9.06 that the person:

- (a) conducted himself or herself in good faith;
- (b) reasonably believed:
 - (1) in the case of conduct in such person's official capacity with the Association, that such conduct was in the Association's best interest; and

(2) in all other cases, that the conduct was at least not opposed to the Association's best interests; and

(c) in the case of any criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe such conduct was unlawful.

9.3 Prohibited Indemnification. Except as provided in Section 9.5, a Director may not be indemnified under Section 9.2 in respect of a proceeding:

(a) brought by or in the right of the Association in which the person is adjudged liable to the Association; or

(b) in which the person is adjudged liable on the basis that personal benefit was improperly received by such person, whether or not the benefit resulted from an action taken in the person's official capacity.

9.4 Effect of Termination of Proceeding. The termination of a proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, or conviction, or on a plea of nolo contendere, or its equivalent, is not, of itself, determinative that the person did not meet the requirements set forth in Section 9.2.

9.5 Mandatory Indemnification. Any person who is a Director of the Association who is wholly successful, on the merits or otherwise, in the defense of any proceeding to which such person was a party because of his or her capacity as a Director or officer of the Association, shall be entitled to indemnification of all reasonable expenses actually incurred by such person in connection with the proceeding.

9.6 Determination of Indemnification. A determination of indemnification under Section 9.2 must be made:

(a) by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors who, at the time of the vote, are not named parties to the proceeding;

(b) if such a quorum cannot be obtained, by a majority vote of a committee of the Board of Directors, designated to act in the matter by a majority vote of all Directors, consisting solely of two or more Directors who at the time of the vote are not named parties to the proceeding;

(c) by special legal counsel selected by the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board of Directors by vote as set forth in Subsection (a) or (b) of this Section, or, if such a quorum cannot be obtained and such a committee cannot be established, by a majority vote of all Directors; or

(d) by the Members in a vote that excludes the vote of Directors who are named parties to the proceeding.

9.7 Authorization of Indemnification. Authorization of indemnification and determination as to reasonableness of expenses must be made in the same manner as the determination that indemnification is permissible, except that (i) if the determination that indemnification is permissible is made by special legal counsel, authorization of indemnification and determination as to reasonableness of expenses must be made in the manner specified by Subsection (c) of Section 9.6 for the selection of special legal counsel, and (ii) the provision of this Article making indemnification mandatory in certain cases specified herein shall be deemed to constitute authorization in the manner specified by Section 9.6 of indemnification in such cases.

9.8 Court Determination of Indemnification. Any person who is a Director of the Association and is a party to a proceeding, may apply for indemnification to the court conducting the proceeding, or to another court of competent jurisdiction. If, upon application of a Director, a court of competent jurisdiction determines, after giving any notice the court considers necessary:

(a) the Director is entitled to mandatory indemnification under Section 9.5, the court may order indemnification in the amount it considers proper and shall also order the Association to pay such person's reasonable expenses incurred to obtain the court ordered indemnification; or

(b) that such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification in view of all the relevant circumstances, whether or not such person has met the requirements as set forth in Section 9.2, or has been adjudged liable in the circumstances described by Section 9.3, the court may order indemnification in the amount it considers proper; however, if such person has been adjudged liable in the circumstances described by Section 9.3, the court shall limit indemnification to reasonable expenses incurred.

9.9 Advancement of Expenses. Reasonable expenses incurred by a Director who is a party to a proceeding may be paid or reimbursed by the Association in advance of the final disposition of the proceeding after:

(a) the Association receives a written affirmation by the Director of the good faith belief of such Director that such Director has met the standard of conduct necessary for indemnification under this Article;

(b) the Association requires a written unlimited general obligation of the Director, executed personally or on the Director's behalf (that can be accepted without reference to financial ability to make repayment and need not be secured) to repay the amount paid or reimbursed if it is ultimately determined that the Director has not met the required standard of conduct; and

(c) a determination that the facts then known to those making the determination would not preclude indemnification under this Article.

The determinations and authorizations of payments under this Section 9.9 must be made in the manner specified by Sections 9.6 and 9.7.

9.10 Expenses of Witness. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article, the Association may pay or reimburse expenses incurred by a Director in connection with the appearance as a witness or other participation in a proceeding at a time when the Director is not a named defendant or respondent in the proceeding, given that such appearance or participation occurs by reason of such person being or having been a Director of the Association.

9.11 Indemnification of Officers. The Association shall indemnify any officer of the Association, who is not a Director, to the same extent as that provided for Directors of the Association as specified in Section 9.5. In addition, an officer of the Association, who is not a Director, shall be entitled to apply for court ordered indemnification in the same manner as Directors, as provided in Article IX.

9.12 Indemnification and Advancement of Expenses to Officers and Others. The Association may indemnify and advance expenses to an officer, employee or agent of the Association, who is not a Director, to the same extent as to a Director, and to such further extent as such person may be entitled by the Association's Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, general or specific action of the Board of Directors, or contract or as permitted or required by law.

9.13 Indemnification of Residential Architectural Review Committee Members. For purposes of these Bylaws and indemnification, the members of the RARC (as defined hereinabove) shall be considered agents of the Association for the limited purposes specified in their role on the RARC as established under these Bylaws or the Declaration. In connection therewith, the Association may indemnify and advance or reimburse expenses to any person who is or was a member of the RARC to the same extent that it may indemnify and advance or reimburse expenses to Directors under this Article and the Act.

9.14 Indemnification of Other Persons. The Association may indemnify and advance or reimburse expenses to any person who is not or was not an officer, employee, or agent of the Association but who is or was serving at the request of the Association as a Director, officer, partner, venturer, proprietor, trustee, employee, agent, or similar functionary of another foreign or domestic corporation, association, partnership, joint venture, sole proprietorship, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise to the same extent that it shall indemnify and advance expenses to Directors under this Article.

9.15 Non-Exclusive; Continuation of Indemnification. The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be exclusive of any other rights to which the person claiming indemnification may be entitled under any agreement, any vote of disinterested Directors or otherwise. The indemnification and advance payments provided by this Article shall continue as to a person who has ceased to hold his position as a Director, officer, employee or agent.

9.16 Liability Insurance. The Association may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee, or agent of the Association, or who, while a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Association is or was serving at the request of the Association as a Director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or agent of another foreign or domestic business or nonprofit corporation, association, partnership, joint venture, sole proprietorship, trust, employee benefit plan or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against such person or incurred by such person in such a capacity or arising out of the status as such a person, whether or not the Association would have the power to indemnify such person against that liability under this Article or the Act.

9.17 Report to Members. Any indemnification of or advance of expenses to a Director in accordance with this Article shall be reported in writing to the Members of the Association with or before the notice or waiver of notice of the next meeting of Members or with or before the next submission to Members of a consent to action without a meeting pursuant to the Act and, in any case, within the 12-month period immediately following the date of the indemnification or advance.

ARTICLE X. GENERAL PROVISIONS

10.1 Books and Records. The Association shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its Members, Board of Directors and committees having any of the authority of the Board of Directors, and shall keep at the registered or principal office a record giving the names and addresses of the Members entitled to vote. All books and records of the Association may be inspected by any Member, or his agent or attorney for any proper purpose at any reasonable time.

10.2 Checks and Notes. All checks or demands for money and notes of the Association shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the Board of Directors may from time to time designate.

10.3 Fiscal Year. The Fiscal Year of the Association shall be as determined by the Board of Directors.

10.4 Seal. The Association seal shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Association and shall be in such form as the Board of Directors may prescribe.

10.5 Dedicated Property. The Association shall have power to dedicate any of its property to an appropriate public authority for public use; provided that any such dedication shall have the approval of a majority of the total eligible votes of the membership of the Association as defined in Section 2.2 of these Bylaws voting, in person or by proxy, at a meeting duly called for such purpose, written notice of which

shall be given to all Members at least thirty (30) days in advance and shall set forth the purpose of the meeting.

10.6 Protective or Restrictive Covenants. The Protective or Restrictive Covenants set out in the Declaration or any supplementary declaration referred to in Section 2.1 of these Bylaws are binding on the Members of the Association. The Association shall have the right (but not the duty) to enforce any of the covenants and restrictions set out in any such Declaration or supplementary declaration. Enforcement of the covenants and restrictions shall be by any proceeding at law or in equity against any person or persons violating or attempting to violate any covenant or restriction, either to restrain violation or to recover damages, and against the land, to enforce any lien created by these covenants; and failure by the Association or any Owner to enforce any such covenant or restriction shall in no event be deemed a waiver of the right to do so thereafter.

10.7 Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the Arkansas Non-Profit Corporation Act of 1993 or under the provisions of these Bylaws, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

10.8 Resignation. Any Director, officer or agent may resign by giving written notice to the President or the Secretary. The resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, or immediately if no time is specified. Unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

10.9 Amendments to Bylaws. These Bylaws may be altered, amended, repealed or readopted only by the Class B. Member, until such time as the Class B Membership ceases and is converted to a Class A Membership. Thereafter, unless otherwise provided in the Declaration, the Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed, and new Bylaws may be adopted at any meeting of the Members at which a quorum is present, by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast, or by a majority vote of the Members of the Association entitled to vote thereon, whichever is less. In the event that the Board of Directors or the Members of the Association seek an amendment to these Bylaws, to be approved by the Members at a membership meeting, the Association shall give notice to its Members of the proposed membership meeting, in writing, in accordance with Section 3.4 of these Bylaws concerning notice of Member meetings. The notice must state that one of the purposes of the meeting is to consider the proposed amendment, and the notice must also contain or be accompanied by a copy or summary of the proposed amendment. In the event that approval by the Members is sought in accordance with Section 3.6 of these Bylaws for informal action by the Members, by a written consent or written ballot, the material soliciting the approval shall contain or be accompanied by a copy or summary of the proposed amendment.

10.10 Table of Contents and Headings. The table of contents and headings used in these Bylaws have been inserted for organization and convenience only and do not constitute matters to be construed in interpretation.

10.11 Construction. Whenever the context so requires, the masculine shall include the feminine and neuter, and the singular shall include the plural, and conversely. If any portion of these Bylaws shall be, invalid or inoperative, then, so far as is reasonable and possible, the remainder of these Bylaws shall be considered valid and operative and effect shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion held invalid or inoperative.

10.12 Declaration. Nothing contained in these Bylaws shall constitute an amendment to the Declaration which can only be amended by the Members in the manner specified by the Declaration. However, these Bylaws are intended to implement certain provisions of the Declaration and otherwise, together with the Articles of Incorporation, specify the organization and governance of the Association.

10.13 Loans or Guarantees for Directors or Officers. The Association may not lend money to nor guarantee the obligation of any Director or officer of the Association.

10.14 Definitions. All words or terms used in these Bylaws that are defined in the Declaration shall have the meaning given and assigned to them in said Declaration.

10.15 Governing Law. These Bylaws shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Arkansas applicable thereto, including without limitation the Arkansas Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1993. The courts for the state of Arkansas for Benton County, and the federal courts for the Western District of Arkansas shall have jurisdiction over any and all disputes which arise in relation hereto, whether in law or in equity, and all Members, Directors, officers and agents of the Association shall submit and hereby consent to such courts' exercise of jurisdiction.

APPROVED this 7th day of May, 2001, and **EFFECTIVE** as of the 7th day of May, 2001.

President

CERTIFICATION OF ADOPTION

The foregoing bylaws of the Corporation have been duly adopted this 7th day of May, 2001, by the action of the Incorporator of the Corporation pursuant to the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation and the laws of this State.

IN TESTIMONY THEREOF witness the hand of the undersigned as Secretary of the Corporation on such date.

(SEAL)

Michael R. Philip, Secretary